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Independent Auditor's Repori

To the Board of Trustees
Dehesa School District
El Cajon, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major tund, and
the aggregale remaining fund information of the Dehesa School District {"the District") as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District's basic financial stalements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounling principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audil involves performing procedures to obiain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to iraud or error. In making those
risk assessmenis, the audilor considers inlernal control relevant 1o the District's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumsiances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecliveness of the District's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatleness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estirnates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Dehesa School District as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America.

El Cajon Office Emeryville Office
218 W. Douglas Avenue ElI Cajon, CA 92020 1 1900 Powell Street, Suite 600 Emeryville, CA 94608
Tel. (619) 447-6700 Fax (619) 447-6707 Tel. (619) 510-588-8729 Fax (619) 447-6707



Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounting Principles

As described in Note A to the financial statements, in 2015, Dehesa School District adopted new accounting
guidance, Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting  for Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date -- an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Requiired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of funding progress for OPEB benefits,
schedule of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability and schedule of District pension
contributions identified as Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence 1o express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Dehesa School District's basic financial statements. The combining financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying other supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
the State's audit guide, Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies
2014-15, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements,

The combining financial statements and other supplementary information are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
financial statements and other supplementary information are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Gavernment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Governmenl Audiling Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 26,
2016 on our consideration of Dehesa School District's internal conirol over financial reporling and on our lests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matiers. The purpose of that report is 1o describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Dehesa School District's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Willsieaon ﬂmﬂ? Kiing & s, LLP

El Gajon, California
January 26, 2016



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2015

This section of Dehesa School District's (the District) annual financial report presents our
discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended
on June 30, 2015. Please read it in conjunction with District's financial statements, which
immediately follow this section.

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) issued Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments. GASB No. 34 established financial reporting standards for state and local
government, including cities, villages and special purpose governments.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The District's Net Position was $7,200. This is a decrease of $1,930,426 from prior year.
» The total revenues were $3,945,323. The cost of basic programs was $4,038,888.
e The District's program costs exceeded revenues by $93,565.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts - Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section),
the Basic Financial Statements, Required Supplementary Information, and other Supplementary
Information. The Basic Financial Statements present different views of the District as follows:

e The first two statements are district-wide combined Financial Statements that provide
both short-term and long-term information about the District's overall financial status.

» The remaining statements are Fund Financial Statements that focus on individual parts
of the District, reporting the District's operations in more detail than the district-wide
statements.

The referenced financial statements also include Notes that explain some of the information in
the statements and provide more detailed data. The financial statements are followed by a
section of Required Supplementary Information that further explains and supports the financial
statements with comparisons of the District's budget and actual results for the year.

Below summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including a portion of
the district’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

JUNE 30, 2015

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Major Features of the District-wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements

District-Wide

Governmental Funds

Scope

Entire District, except fiduciary
activities

The activities of the District that are
not proprietary or fiduciary, such as
special education and building
maintenance

Required financial statements

o Statement of Net Position
» Statement of Activities

e Balance Sheet

o Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures & Changes in
Fund Balances

Accounting basis and measurement
focus

Accrual accounting and economic
resources focus

Modified accrual accounting and
current financial resources focus

i Type of asselfliability

All assets and liabilities, both
financial and capital, short-term and
long-term

Only assets expected o be used up
and liabilities that come due during
the year or soon thereafter; no
capital assets included

Type of inflow/outflow information

All revenues and expenses during
year, regardless of when cash is
received or paid

Revenues for which cash is
received during or soon after the
end of the year; expenditures when
goods or service have been
received and payment is due during
the year or soon thereafter

The remainder of this overview section of Management's Discussion and Analysis highlights the
structure and contents of the financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2015

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

District-Wide Statements

The two District-Wide Statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
position includes all of the District's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and
expenses are accounted for in The Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received
or paid.

1) Net position {the difference between the District’s assets and liabilities, see Table 1) is one
way to measure the district’s financial health or position

+ Over time increases and decreases in .the District's net position is an indicator of
whether financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

* To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial
factors such as change in the district's property tax base and the condition of school
buildings and other facilities.

2) The District’s activities are represented in the district-wide financial statements.

» District's Activities - All of the district's basic services are included, such as regular and
special education, transportation, and administration. Property taxes and state formula
aid finance most of these activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the District's specific funds -
not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding and related spending on particular programs:

e Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

e The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes (like repaying any long-term debt) or to show that it is properly using certain
revenues (like Federal grants).



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2015

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o Governmental Funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental
funds, which generally focus on (1) how cash, and other financial assets that can readily
be converted to cash, flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending, Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a
detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the district's programs.
Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the
district-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the
governmental funds statement that explains the relationship (or differences) between
them.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net Position. The District's combined net position as of June 30, 2015, was $7,200 (See Table
A-1 below.)

Table A-1
Condensed Statement of Net Position
30-Jun-14 | 30-Jun-15 $ Change

Current & Other Assets $6,202,368 | $5,661,303 | ($541,065)
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation $1,152,697 | $2,307,962 | $1,155,265
Total Assets $7,3565,065| $7,969,265 $614,200
Current Liabilities $325,119 $908,384 $583,265
General Long-Term Debt $5,092,320 | $6,752,340 | $1,660,020
Total Liabilities $5,417,439 | $7,660,724 | $2,243,285
Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets

Capital Projects $548,542 | $3,464,469 | $2,915,927
Debt Service $159,819 $108,741 ($51,078)
Educational Programs $156,319 $156,319
Unrestricted $784,499 | ($3,855,719) | (34,640,218)
Restricted $444,766 $133,390 | ($311,376)
Total Net Position $1,937,626 $7,200 | ($1,930,426)
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

JUNE 30, 2015

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Position. The District’s total revenue was $3,945,323. (See Table A-2). The
total cost of all programs and services was $4,038,888. The total expenses surpassed revenue

by $93,565.
Condensed Statement of Activities
30-Jun-14 30-Jun-15 | Difference
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $68,731 $19,451 ($49,280)
Operating Grants and Contributions $1,300,644 | $1,463,195 $162,551
Capital Grants and Contributions 30 $0 $0
General Revenues

Taxes & Subventions $1,006,562 $914,736 ($91,826)
Federal & State Revenue $738,359 $721,868 ($16,491)
Local Revenue $332,584 $826,073 $493,489

Total Revenues $3,446,880 $3,945,323 $498,443

Expenses

Instruction $2,302,904 | $2,464,135 $161,231
Instruction-Related Services $282,686 $373,467 $90,781
Pupil Services $348,776 $291,729 ($57,047)
General Administration $259,588 $273,332 $13,744
Plant Services $301,271 $353,682 $52,411

Depreciation (Unaliocated) 380,026 $69,188 ($10,838)
Other Outgo $90,208 ($90,208)
Interest on Long-Term Debt $268,196 $213,355 ($54,841)

Total Expenses $3,933,665| $4,038,888 $105,233
Change in Net Position ($486,775) ($93,565) $393,210




DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2015

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds. The
District closed fiscal year 2014-2015 with a total combined, government fund balance of
$4,838,789. A breakdown of the ending fund balances in governmental funds is summarized on

Table A-3 below.

Table A-3

Governmental Funds

General Fund $457,535
Charter Special Revenue Fund $127,753
Child Development Fund $0
Cafeteria Fund $16,591
Deferred Maintenance Fund $107,384
Special Reserve Fund for Other than Capital Outlay $484 257
Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits $67,589
Building Fund $2,979,687
Capital Facilities Fund $477,353
Special Reserve for Capital Qutlay $7,430
Bond Interest & Redemption Fund $108,741
Total $4,834,320
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2015

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the district revised the annual operating budget several times. The
following table is an analysis of the budget verses actual expenditures within the general fund.

Table A-4
Budget vs. Actual Expenditures
Budgeted Amounts
QOriginal Final Actual

Revenues:

LCFF Sources

State Apportionments $ 1,118,047 S 1,147,059 S 1,084,277
EPA S 167,461 $ 208,192 S 249,655
Local Sources S 85,611 $ 103,122 $ 108,068
Federal Revenue S 377,018 S 364,778 $ 365,190
Other State Revenue S 142,259 S 99,916 $ 150,796
Other Local Revenue S 1,090,829 S 1,276,662 $ 1,390,534
Total Revenues $ 2,985,225 $ 3,199,729 $ 3,348,520
Expenditures:

Current:

Certificated Salaries
Classified Salaries 461,465 488,918 489,339
Employee Benefits 407,938 407,895 436,642

S 965,027 S $
S $ $
$ $ $
Books and Supplies $ 99,152 $ 155,000 S 129,762
$ $ s
$ $ $
S 5 S

867,545 913,953

Services and Other Operating Expenditures 1,178,054 1,304,583 1,383,260

Capital Qutlay 31,000 11,334 7,062

Total Expenditures 3,142,636 3,235,275 3,360,018
Excess (Deficiency of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures S (157,411) S (35,546) S (11,498)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In S 7,950 S 2343 S 9,475
Transfers Qut S - S 126,880 S 82,204
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) S 7,950 S (103,446) S (72,729)
Net Change in Fund Balance S (149,461) S (138,992) S (84,227)
Fund Balance, July 1 S 446,233 $ 541,763 S 541,763
Fund Balance, June 30 S 296,772 S 402,771 S 457,536
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2015

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

Capital assets (net of deprectation) are at $2,307,962. These assets include Land, Land

Improvement, Building Construction and Equipment.

year was $119,885.

The total depreciation expense for the

Table A-5

Capital Assets

30-Jun-14 30-Jun-15 Change
Work in Progress $375,322 | $1,643,410( $1,268,088
Land $3,000 $3,000 $0
Buildings $2,069,265 | $2,059,265 $0
Land Improvements $9,900 $9,900 $0
Equipment $721,547 $728,609 $7,062
Less: Accumulated Depreciation ($2,016,337) | ($2,136,222) | ($119,885)
Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation $1,152,697 | $2,307,962 | $1,155,265
Long-Term Debt
Table A-6
Long Term Debt
30-Jun-14 30-Jun-15| $% Change

Compensated Absences $30,227 $21,313 ($8,914)
GO Bonds $4,590,844 | $4,590,844 30
Other Long-Term Debt $381,245 $391,142 $9,897
Net Pension Liability $2,031,188 | $1,611,485| ($419,703)
Net OPEB Obligation $90,004 $137,556 $47,552
Total Long Term Debt $7,123,508 | $6,752,340 | ($371,168)




DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2015

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT'S FUTURE

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the only known
circumstances that could significantly affect the District's financial health would be an
unexpected material decrease in average daily attendance or a sudden unplanned economic
downturn in the State economy.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general
overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the money
it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information,

contact Lori Wigg, Business Manager, Dehesa School District, 4612 Dehesa Road, El Cajon,
CA 92019.

Dehesa School District
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS:
GCash
Accounis Receivable
Capital Assets:
Land
Land Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Work in Progress
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounis Payable
Uneamed Revenue
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION:
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Educational Programs
Other Purposes (Expendable)
Other Purposes (Nonexpendable)
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement.
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3 5,145,581
515,722

3,000
9,800
2,059,265
728,609
1,643,410
2,136,222}
7,969,265

138,591

907,318
1,066

33,749
6,718,591
7,660,724

439,932

3,464,469
108,741
156,319
191,563
133,390

(4,047,282)

3 7,200

EXHIBIT A-1



EXHIBIT A-2
DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental
Functions Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
Governmental Activities:
Instruction $ 2484135 $ - $ 1334948 § . $ (1,129,187}
Instruction-Related Services:
Instructional Supervision
and Administration 20,184 - 25,005 . (4,179)
Instructional Library, Media
and Technology 61,518 . - - {61,518)
School Site Administration 282,765 - 6,101 - (276,664)
Pupil Services:
Home-to-School Trans-
portation 115,200 - 51 - {115,149)
Food Services 79,145 18,396 50,924 - (9,825)
All Other Pupil Services 97,384 - 28,128 - {69,256)
General Administration:
Centralized Data Pracessing 3,871 - - - {3.871)
All Other General
Administration 269,461 665 16,958 - (251,838)
Plant Services 353,682 390 1,080 - (352,212)
Depreciation (unallocated) 69,188 - - - (69,188)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 213,355 - - - (213,355)
Total Expenses $ 4038888 § 19,451 $ 1,463,195 % - $ (2,556,242)
General Revenues:
Taxes and Subventions:
Taxes Levied for General Purposes 799,494
Taxes Levied for Debt Service 115,242
Federal and State Aid Not Restricted to Specific Programs 721,868
Interest and Investment Eamings 20,118
Interagency Revenues 395,342
Miscellaneous 410,613
Total General Revenues $ 2,462,677
Change in Net Position (93,565}
Net Position Beginning as Adjusted (Note P) 100,765
Net Position Ending $ 7,200

The accompanying notes are an Inlegral part of this statement.

14



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANGE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

EXHIBIT A-3

Other Total
General Building Governmental Govemmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS:
Cash in County Treasury $ 1,121,012 $ 3,155,567 $ 862,885 § 5,139,464
Cash on Hand and in Banks - - 479 479
Cash in Revolving Fund 5,637 - - 5,637
Accounls Receivable 498,024 3,526 14,172 515,722
Due from Other Funds 45,465 - 484 45,949
Total Assels 1,670,138 3,159,093 878,020 5,707,251
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable L 632,732 § 179,406 $ 13,778 % 825,916

Due to Other Funds 26,959 - 18,990 45,949

Unearned Revenue 1,066 - - 1,066
Total Liabilities 660,757 179,406 32,768 872,931
Fund Balance:

Nonspendable Fund Balances:

Revolving Cash 5,638 - - 5,638
Restricted Fund Balances 158,319 2,979,687 603,866 3,742,872
Committed Fund Balances - - 107,384 107,384
Assigned Fund Balances 67,589 - 134,002 201,591
Unassigned:

Reserve for Economic Uncertainty 739,611 - - 739,611

Other Unassigned 37,224 - - 37,224
Unassigned, reporied in nonmajor:

Total Fund Balance 1,009,381 2,979,687 B45,252 4,834,320
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 5 1,670,138 § 3159093 % 878,020 % 5,707,251

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

Total fund balances, govemmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital Assets: In governmental funds, only cument assets are repored. In the stalement of net
position, all assels are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation.

Capital assets relating to governmental activities, at historical cost: 4,444,184
Accumulated depreciation: (2,136,222)
Net:

Unmaltured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not
recognized until the period in which it matures and is paid. In the government-wide statement of
aclivities, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. The additional liability for unmatured
interest owing at the end of the period was:

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions: In governmental funds, deferred
outflows and inflows of resources relating o pensions are not reporied because they are
applicable to future periods. In the statement of net position, deferred outffows and inflows of
resources relating fo pensions are reported.

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources relating o pensions

Long-term liabilities: In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the statement
of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. Long-lerm liabilities relating
1o governmental activities consist of:

General obligation bonds 4,590,844
Accreted interest 38,380
Bond premium 352,762
Net Pension Liability 1,611,485
Net OPEB obligation 137,556
Compensated absences payable 21,313

Total net position, governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 4,834,320

2,307,962

(81,401)

138,591
(438,932)

(6,752,340}

$ 7,200



EXHIBIT A-5

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Other Total
General Building Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
LCFF Sources:
State Apportionment or State Aid $ 1,084,277 & - $ - $ 1,084,277
Education Protection Account Funds 249,655 - - 249,655
Local Sources 108,069 - - 108,069
Federal Revenue 365,190 - 49,532 414,722
Other State Revenue 150,795 - 5,587 156,382
Other Local Revenue 1,392,047 13,549 526,620 1,932,216
Total Revenues 3,350,033 13,549 581,739 3,945,321
Expenditures:
Instruction 2,356,536 - - 2,356,536
Instruction - Related Services 348,138 - - 348,138
Pupll Services 143,691 - 136,934 280,625
General Administration 272,133 - 2,775 274,908
Plant Services 239,521 1,271,288 95,178 1,605,987
Debt Service:
Interest - - 166,817 166,817
Total Expenditures 3,360,019 1,271,288 401,704 5,033,011
Excess (Deficlency)} of Revenues
Over {Under) Expenditures (9,986) {1,257,739) 180,035 (1,087,690)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 76,994 - 14,685 91,679
Transfers Qut (91,679) - - (91,679}
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (14,685) - 14,685 -
Net Change in Fund Balance (24,671) (1,257,739) 194,720 (1,087,690}
Fund Balance, July 1 1,034,052 4,237,426 650,532 5,922,010
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 1,009381 & 2979687 % 845252 § 4,834,320

The accompanying nates are an integral part of this statement.
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Total change in fund balances, governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capilal outlay: In govemmenial funds, the costs of capital asseis are reported as expenditures in
the period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of aclivities, costs of capital assets are
allocated over thelr estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The difference between
capital outiay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

Expenditures for capital outlay 1,275,150
Depreciation expense {119,885)
Net:

Pensions: In government funds, pension cosis are recognized when employer contributions
arg made. In the slatement of activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis.
This year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actwal employer
contributions was:

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is
recognized in the period it becomes due. In the govemment-wide statement of activities, it is
recognized in the period that it is Incued. Unmalured interest owing at the end of the period,
less matured interest paid during the period but owing from the prior period, was:

Debt issue costs: In governmental funds, debt issue cosls are recognized as expenditures in the
period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, issue cosis are amorized over the
life of the debl. The difference between debt issue costs recognized in the current period and
issue costs amortized for the period is:

Postemployment benefils other than pensions (OPEB): In governmental funds, OPEB costs are
recognized when employer contributions are made. In the statement of activites, OPEB cosis are
recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between OPEB costs and actual
employer contributions was:

Compensated absences: In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the
amounts paid during the period. In the statement of aclivities, compensated absences are
measured by the amounts eamed. The difference between compensaled absences paid and
compensated absences earned was:

Change in net assels of governmental activities - slatement of activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$ (1,087,690}

1,155,265

{75.967)

(36,638)

(9,897}

{47,552)

8,914

3 (93,569)



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS:
Cash on Hand and in Banks
Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Due to Student Groups
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION:
Total Net Position

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement.
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Agency
_ Fund

Student
Body
Fund

$ 4,419
4,419

5 4,419
4,419



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

A S [ Significant A ing Palici

Dehesa School District (District) accounts for its financial transaclions in accordance with the policies and procedures
of the Department of Education's “Califomia School Accounting Manual®. The accounting policies of the District
conform to accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) and the American Institule of Certified Public Accounianis
(AICPA).

1. Beporing Entily

The District’'s combined financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The District evaluated
whether any other entity should be included in these financial stalements. The criteria for including
organizations as component units within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Siatement No. 14,
"The Financial Reporting Entity," include whether:

- the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name)

- the District holds the corporate powers of the arganization

- the District appoints a voting majority of the organization's board

- the District Is able to impose its will on the organization

- the organization has the polential to impose a financial benefitburden on the District
- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

The District also evaluated each legally separate, tax-exempt organization whose resources are used principally
to provide support 1o the District to delermine if is omission from the reporting entity would result in financial
stalements which are misleading or incomplete. GASB Statement No. 14 requires Inclusion of such an
organizalion as a componant unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the Districl, its component units or its constituents; and 2) The
District or its component units is entitled 1o, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic
resources received or held by the organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to the District.

Based on these criteria, the District has no component units. Additionally, the District is not a component unit of
any other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement.

2. BasisofP fion. Basis of A i
a. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The stalement of net posilion and the statement of activities include the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made
to minimize the double-counting of imternal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a paricular function. The District does
not allocale indirect expenses in the statement of activities, Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and conlributions
that are restricted to mesting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues
that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Districl's funds,
with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on
major govemmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The District repaorts the following major govermmental funds:

Genera! Fund, This is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Building Fund. This fund accounts for the acquisiton of major governmental capital facilities and
buildings from the sale of bond proceeds.

In addition, the District reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Capital Projects Funds: These funds account for the acquisition and/or construction of all major
governmental general fixed assets.

Debt Service Funds. These funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of
general long-term debt principal, interest, and related cosis.

Agency Funds: These funds are used to report siudent aclivity funds and other resources held in a purely
custodial capacity {(assets equal liabilities). Agency funds typically involve only the receipt, temporary
investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other
governments

Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduclary fund financial statements. However, because their assets are held in
a truslee or agent capacity and are therefore not available to support District programs, these funds are not
included in the government-wide statements.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Govemment-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statemenis: These financial statements
are reporled using the economic resources measuremeni focus. The government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements are reporied using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when eamed and expenses are recorded al the time liabilities are incurred, regardiess of when the
related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include properly taxes, grants,
entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property laxes is recognized in the
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entillements, and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The District does no! consider revenues
collected after its year-end to be available in the current period. Revenues from focal sources consist
primarily of properly faxes. Propery tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized
under the susceptible-to-accrual concept.  Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when
received In cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received.  Investment
eamings are recorded as eamed, since they are both measurable and avallable. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is Incurred, except for principal and interest on general
long-lerm debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expenditures 1o the extent they have matured. General capiltal asset acquisitons are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-lerm debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the District incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources
may be used, it is the District's policy lo use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporiing for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entiies That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” all proprietary funds will continue to
follow Financlal Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") standards issued on or before November 30,
1989, However, from thal date forward, proprietary funds will have the oplion of either 1) choosing
not lo apply fulure FASB standards (including amendments of earlier pronouncements), or 2) continuing
to follow new FASB pronouncemenis unless they conilict with GASB guidance. The District has chosen
to apply future FASB standards.

3. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for
which commilments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracls, and other
commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid. All
encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30.

4. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual budgets are adopled on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
govemmental lunds. By state law, the District's goveming board must adopt a final budget no later than July
1. A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The District's governing
board satisfied these requirements.

These budgets are revised by the District's governing board and district superintendent during the year to give
consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration was used as a management control device during the year for all budgeted
funds. The District employs budget conlrol by minor object and by individual appropriation accounts.
Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object code.

5. Revenues and Expenses
a. Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue Is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become
available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current year or expected
to be collected soon enough thereafter, to be used to pay liabilities of the cument fiscal year.
Generally, available is defined as collectible within 60 days. However, to achieve comparability of
reporting among California districts and so as to not distort normal revenue patterns, with specific
respect to reimbursement grants and comections to Slate-aid apporionments, the California Department
ot Education has defined available for districls as collectible within one year. The following revenue
sources are considered to be both measurable and available at fiscal year-end: State apportionments,
interest, certain grants, and other local sources.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions in which the District receives value without directly giving
equal value in return, including property taxes, cerain granis, entilements, and donations. Revenue
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which the taxes are received. Revenue from
certain granis, eniilements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year In which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include time and pumpose restrictions. On a
modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can
be recognized.
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. The
measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
{expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable, and typically paid within 90 days. Principat
and interest on long-term obligations, which has not matured, are recognized when paid in the
govemmental funds as expenditures. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are
not recognized in the governmental funds but are recognized in the government-wide financial
statements.

6. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

Deposits and Investments

Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured to $250,000 by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized. For
purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivalents
if they have a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all its cash in the
San Diego County Treasury. The county pools these funds with those of other districts in the county and
invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried al cost, which approximales market value. Interest
earned is deposiled quarlerly into participating funds, except for the Tax Overide Funds, in which
interest eamed is credited to the general fund. Any invesiment losses are proportionately shared by all
funds in the pool.

The county is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code
Section 53648 et seq. The funds maintained by the county are either secured by federal depository
insurance or are collateralized.

Information regarding the amount of dollars Invested in derivatives with San Diego County Treasury was
not available.

Stores Inventories and Prepaid Expenditures

Inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at
the time individual inventory items are purchased. Inventories are valued at average cost and consist of
expendable supplies held for consumption. Reported inventories are equally offsat by a fund balance
reserve, which indicates that these amounts are nol "available for appropriation and expenditure” even
though they are a component of net current assels.

The District has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid ilems either
when purchased or during the benefiling period. The District has chosen to report the expenditure
during the benefiling period.

Capital Assets
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed
assets are recorded at thelr estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal

maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assels' lives are
not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $5,000 is used.
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the fallowing estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Uselul Lives
Buildings 25-50
Building Improvements 10-20
Vehicles 57
Office Equipment 3-15
Computer Equipment 5-15

d. Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employes vacation benefils are recognized as liabilities of the District. The current
portion of the liabilities is recognized in the general fund at year end.

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is o
record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since such benefits do not vest nor Is
payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation
of retirement benefits whan the employee retires.

e. Uneamed Revenue

Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable® and "available”
criteria for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the
incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are
met, or when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the liablity for unearned revenue is
removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

f. Interfund Activity

Interfund aclivity results from loans, services provided, reimbursemenis or transfers between funds. Loans
are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are trealed as revenues
and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund
transaclions are treated as transfers. Translers In and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single
"Trangfers” line on the government-wide stalement of aclivities. Similarly, interfund receivables and
payables are nefted and presented as a single “Internal Balances” line of the govemment-wide
statement of net position.

g. Properly Taxes
Secured property taxes atlach as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. Taxes are payable in
two installments on MNovember 15 and March 15. Unsecured property laxes are payable in one
installment on or before August 31. The County of San Diego bills and collects the taxes for the District.

h. Fund Batances - Governmental Funds
Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:
Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in

spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact (such as
notes receivable or principat of a permanent fund).
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Reslricted Fund Balance - represenls amounis that are constrained by external parties, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of
a formal action by the District's goveming board. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the goveming board removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal
action. Committed fund batance amounis may be used for other purposes with appropriate due
process by the goveming board. Commitments are typically done through adoption and amendment of
the budget. Committed fund balance amounis differ from restricted balances in that the constraints
on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legistation.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but
that do nol meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or commitied. Intent may be stipulated by the
govemning board or by an official or body to which the goveming board delegates the authority, Specific
amounts that are not reslricted or committed in a special revenus, capital projects, debt service or
permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of thelr fund type or the fund's
primary purpose. Assignments within the general fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts is
for a specific purpose that Is narrower than the general purposes ol the District itself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for
any purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental
funds might repot a negative balance in this classification because of overspending for specific
purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which bolh restricted and unrestricled fund balance is
available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District
considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally
unassigned funds.

I Minimum Fund Balance

The District maintains a minimum reserve of 5% of general fund expenditures including other financing
uses within the general fund. This reserve may be increased from time to time in order to address
specific anticipated shortfalls. If necessary, The Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay
may also be used fo meet the minimum state required reserve level. The minimum reserve shall apply
towards the established minimum Reserve for Economic lincertainties or an amount thal that meeis or
exceeds the requirements by law. The District is commitled to maintsining a prudent level of financial
resources 10 protect against the need to reduce service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or
unpredicted expenditures.

Because amounls in the nonspendable, restricted, committed, and assigned calegories are subject 1o
varying constraints in use, the Reserve for Economic Uncertainties consists of balances that are
otherwise unassigned.

7. Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outllows of resources is a consumption of net assets or net position that is applicable to a fulure
reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources is an acquisition of net assets or net position that is applicable

to a future reporting period. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are recorded in
accordance with GASB Statement numbers 63 and 65.
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

10.

1.

GASB 54 Fund Presentation

Consistent with fund reporting requirements established by GASB Statement No. 54, Fund 17 (Special
Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Qutlay) and Fund 20 (Special Reserve Fund for Post Employment
Benefits) are merged with the General Fund for purposes of presentation in the audit report.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources relaled to pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduclary net position of the
CalPERS Schools Pool Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (CalPERS Plan) and CalSTRS Schools Pool
Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Plan {CalSTRS Plan), and additions io/deductions from the CalPERS Plan
and CalSTRS Plan's fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
the CalPERS Financial Office and CalSTRS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when cumently due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

GASB 68 requires that the reporied resulis must perain to liability and asset information within certain
defined time frames. For this report, the following time frames are used:

Valuation Date {VD) June 30, 2013
Measurement Date (MD}) June 30, 2014
Measurement Period {MP) July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with GAAP requires the use of management's
estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimales.

Change in Accounting Policies

In June, 2012 the GASB issued Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financia! Reporting for Pensions — an
Amendment of GASB No. 27," which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. The District
has implemented the provisions of this Statement for the year ended June 30, 2015.

The Statement requires numerous new pension disclosures in the noles to the financial statements and two
new 10-year schedules as required supplementary information. Also, for the first time the District Is required to
recognize pension expense, report deferred outliows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions, a net pension liability for Hs proporionate shares of the collective pension expense, collective
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows ol resources relaled 1o pensions, and collective net
pension liability. The reporting of these new amounts on the government-wide financial statements, along
with the effect of the restatement of the beginning net position, if any, will also affect the District's
government-wide net position.

In November, 2013 the GASB issved Stalement No. 71, "Pension Transition for Confributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68". This Staterment amends
Paragraph 137 of Statement €8 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred
outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the
beginning net pension liability. Statement 68, as amended, continues to require that beginning balances
for olher deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related lo pensions be reported at
transition only if It is practical to determing all such amounts. The District has implemented the provisions of
this Statement for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

B. Compliance and Accountability

1.

Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Pravisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,” violations of finance-
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such
violations.

Violali Action Tat
None reported Not applicable

Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Position of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net position at year end, if any, along with remarks which
address such deficits:

Deficit
Eund Name __Amount  BRemarks
None reported Not applicable  Not applicable

c. E { Expendilures Over A fal

As of June 30, 2015, expenditures exceeded appropriations in individuaf funds as follows:

Excess
Appropriations Category Expenditures
General Fund:
Certificated salaries $ 46,409
Classified salaries 422
Employee benefils 28,746
Services and other operating expenditures 81,452

The District incurred unanticipated expenses in salaries, benefits, and operating expenses.

D. Casb and Investments

1.

Cash in County Treasury:

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of ils cash in the San
Diego County Treasury as part of the common investment pool {$5,139,464 as of June 30, 2015). The fair value
of the District's portion of this pool as of that date, as provided by the pool sponsor, was $5,139,464. Assumplions
made in determining the fair value of the pooled investment portfolios are available from the County Treasurer.

The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external invesiment pool as the District is
required to deposil all raceipts and collections of monies with their County Treasurer {(Education Code Section
41001). The fair value of the District's investments in the pool is reported in the accounting financial
statements as amounils based upon the Districts pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County
Treasurer for the enfire porifolio (in relation lo the amortized cost of the portfolio). The balance available for
withdrawal is based on the accounting recards maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the
amorlized cost basis.
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2.

Cash on Hand. in Ban! Jin Revolving Fund

Cash balances on hand and in banks ($4,898 as of June 30, 2015) and in the revolving fund (35,637) are
insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial
insfitution is fully insured or collateralized.

Investments Authorized by the Galifornia Government Code and the District's Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the Califomia
Government Code (or the Distict's investment policy, where more restrictive), The table also identifies certain
provisions of the Califonia Government Code (or the District's investment policy where more restrictive) that
address Interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table doss not address investments of
debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the District,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District's investment policy.

Maximum Maximum Maximum

Remaining Perceniage Investment in
Authorized Invesiment Typa Maturity of Partfolio One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 Years None None
Registerad State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 Years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 Years None None
L.8. Agency Securities 5 Years None None
Banker's Acceptance 180 Days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 Days 25% 10%
Negotiable Centificates of Deposit 5 Years 30% None
Repurchase Agreementis 1 Year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 Days 20% of Base None
Medium-Term Gorporate Notes S Years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Maorigage Pass-Through Securities 5 Years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the District was exposed to the following
specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

a.

Credit Risk

Cradit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
county is restricted by Government Code Section 53625 pursuant 1o Section 53601 to invest only in time
deposils, U.S. govemment securities, state registered warranis, notes or bonds, State Treasurer's
investment pool, bankers' accepiances, commercial paper, negotiable cerificates of deposit, and
repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The ratings of securifies by nationally recognized rating
agencles are designed fo give an indication of credit risk. The San Diego County Investment Pool is rated
AAAI/S1 by Standard & Poors. At year end the District was not exposed to credit risk.
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b. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposils are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the
deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not
in the District's name. The California Govemment Code and the District's investment policy do not contain
legal or policy requirements that would fimit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental unils by pledging securiies in an undivided
collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law {unless so waived by the governmental
unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the
fotal amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public
deposits.

Investment securities are exposed 1o cuslodial credit risk if the securilies are uninsured, are not registered
in the name of the govemment, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparly's trust
depariment or agent but not in the Districl's name.

As of June 30, 2015, the District's bank balances of $10,535 (including revolving cash) was not exposed to
custodial credit risk.

c. Concentration of Credit Risk
This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's invesiment in a single issuer.

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer beyond the amount stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one
issuer that represent five percent or more of the total investments are either an external investment pool
and are therefore exempt. As such, the District was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. The District manages ils exposure to interesl rate risk by
investing in the county pool.

€. Forsign Currency Risk

This is the risk thal exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an invesiment. Al year end, the
District was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

5. Investment Accounting Policy

The District is required by GASB Statement No. 31 to disclose ils policy for determining which investments, if
any, are reported at amortized cost. The District's general policy is to report money marke! investmenis and
short-lerm participating Interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating
inferest-earning investment contracts using 2 cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is
significantly affected by the impalrment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at
fair value. All ofher investments are reported at fair value unless a legal coniract exists which guarantees a
higher value. The term “shortterm” refers to investments which have a remaining term of one year or less at
time of purchase. The term "nonparicipating” means that the Investment's value does not vary with market
interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating inlerest-earning
investment contracts.
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The District's investments in exiemnal investment pools are reported at an amount delermined by the fair vafue
per share ol the pool's underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at share
value. A 2a7-like pool is one which is nol registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") as
an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent

with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investiment Company Act of 1940,
E. Accounts Receivabla
Accounts receivable at June 30, 2015 consisted of:

Major Governmental Funds

Nonmajor Total
Genaral Building Governmental  Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Federal Government:
Federal programs $ 310,015 % - $ 12,426 $ 322,441
State Government:
Lottery 17,208 - - 17,208
Other state programs 29,691 - 1,024 30,715
Local Sources:
Interest 959 3,526 722 5,207
Other local sources 140,151 - - 140,151
Totals $ 498,024 & 3,526 § 14,172 & 515,722

All accounts receivable are considered to be collectible in full and as such no allowance for doubtful accounts has

been established.
F.  Capilal Assels

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
G \al activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 3,000 $ - $ S 3,000
Work in progress 375,322 1,268,088 - 1,643,410
Total capital assets not being depreciated 378,322 1,268,088 - 1,646,410
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 2,059,265 - - 2,059,265
Improvements 9,900 - - 9,800
Equipment 721,547 7,062 - 728,609
Total capital assels being depreciated 2,790,712 7,062 - 2,797,774
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings (1,437,197) (75,848) - {1,513,045)
Improvements (9,900) - - {9,900)
Equipment {569,240) (44,037) - (613,277)
Total accumulated depreciation {2,016,337) 119,885) - {2,136,222)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 774,375 112,823) - 661,552
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 1,152,697 % 1,155,265 § - 2,307,962
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Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

Instruction $ 19,496
Instruction-Related Services 20,008
Pupil Services 2,224
General Administration 2,876
Plant Services 6,093
Other Outgo 69,188

3 119,885

G. Interfund Balances and Activities
1. Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at June 30, 2015, consisted of the following:

Due To Fund . Due From Fund Amount Purpose
Special Reserve Fund General Fund $ 17,000 Cash contribution
General Fund Cafeteria Fund 9,910 Contribution and indirect costs
General Fund Child Development Fund 9,080 Cash contribution
Child Development Fund General Fund 370 Cash adjustment
General Fund Special Reserve Fund 8,476 Board approved stipends
Cafeteria Fund General Fund 113  Cash adjustment
Total $ 45949

All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid within one year.
2. Transfers To and From QOther Funds

Transfers to and from other funds at June 30, 2015, consisted of the following:

Translers From Transfers To Amount Reason
General Fund Child Davelopment Fund $ 6,820 Cash contribution
General Fund Special Reserve Fund 67,519 OPEB contribution
Special Reserve Fund General Fund 9,475 Board approved stipends
General Fund Cafeteria Fund 7,865 Cash contribution

Total $ 91,679

H. Accounts Payable
Accounts payable at June 30, 2015 consisted of:

Major Governmental Funds

Nanmajor Total
General Building Governmental  Governmenial

Fund Fund Funds Funds
Vendor payables $ 467,436 $ 179,406 § 8921 % 655,763
Pension related liabilities 11,895 - 584 12,479
Charter school payables 117,121 - - 117,121
Payrall benefits 36,280 - 4,273 40,553
Totals $ 632,732 § 179,406 $ 13,778 & 825,916
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Short-Tem Debt Activi

The District accounts for shon-term debts for maintenance purposes through the General Fund, The proceeds from
loans are shown in the financial statements as Other Resources.

Deferrad Quiflows of Resources

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68 & 71, paymenis made subsequent to the net pension liability
measurement date are recorded as deferred outflows of resources.

A summary of the deferred outflows of resources as of June 30, 2015 is as follows:

Amortization Balance Current Year Balance
Pescription Issue Date Term July 1, 2014 Additions Amortization Jung 30, 2015
Pension related 06/30/2015 1 Year $ - $ 138,591 § - $ 138,591
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ - $ 138,591 § - $ 138,591

Future amortization of deferred outflows of resources is as follows:

Year Ending Pension

June 30 Related
2016 $ 138,591
Total $ 138,591

Delerred Inflows of Resources

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68 & 71, paymenis received subsequent to the ne! pension liability
measurement dale are recorded as deferred inflows of resources.

A summary of the deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2015 is as follows:

Amortization Balance Current Year Balance
Description Issue Dale Term July 1, 2014 Additions Amortization  Juns 30, 2015
Pension related 06/30/2015 1 Year $ S $ 439,932 % - $ 439,932
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ - $ 439932 § - $ 439,932

Future amortization of deferred inflows of resources is as follows:

Year Ending Pension

June 30 Related
2016 $ 439,932
Total $ 439,832
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L. Long-Tem Obligations
1. Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations inciude debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended
June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
General obligation bonds $ 4,590,844 § - $ - $ 4,590,844 $ -
Accreted interest 16,047 22,333 - 38,380 -
Bond premium 365,198 - 12,436 a52,762 12,436
Net pension liability 2,031,188 - 419,703 1,611,485 -
Compensated absences * 30,227 - 8,914 21,313 21,313
Net OPEB obligation 90,004 67,519 19,967 137,556 -
Total governmental activities $ 7,123,508 $ 89852 $ 461,020 § 6,752,340 &% 33,749

* Other long-term liabilities
The funds typically used fo liquidate other long-lerm liabilities in the past are as follows:

Liability Activity Type Fund
Compensated absences Governmental  General

2. Debt Service Requirements

Debl service requirements on long-term debt, net of bond premium, net OPEB obligation, and net pension
liability at June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Accreted

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Interast Total

2016 $ 21313 % - $ 195,363 $ 216,676
2017 - - 195,363 185,363
2018 4,775 225 195,362 200,362
2019 24,263 737 195,063 220,063
2020 23,942 1,058 194,463 219,463
2021-2025 262,326 27,674 956,924 1,246,924
2026-2030 484,024 105,976 810,425 1,500,425
2031-2035 543,388 421,764 843,437 1,808,589
2036-2040 1,238,126 216,874 711,018 2,166,018
2041-2045 2,010,000 - 290,586 2,300,586
Totals $ 4612157 % 774308 $ 4688004 $_ 10,074,469
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3. General Obligation Bonds

General obligation bonds at June 30, 2015 consisted of the following:

Amount of
Date of Interest Maturity Original
Issue Rate Date Issue

2010 Election Series A 08/01/2013 3.00-4.00% 08/01/2043 & 2,499,852
2012 Election Series A 06/01/2014 1.46-5.11% 08/01/2044 2,170,992
$ 4,670,844

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
2010 Election Series A $ 2,419,852 % - 5 - $ 2,419,852
2010 Accreted Interast 11,272 8,255 - 19,527
2012 Election Series A 2,170,992 - - 2,170,992
2012 Accreted Interest 4,775 14,078 - 18,853
Total GO Bonds $ 4606691 § 22333 % & $ 4629224

The annual requirements to amortize the bonds outstanding at June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Accreted

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Interest Total

2016 $ - $ - $ 195,363 § 195,363
2017 - - 195,363 195,363
2018 4,775 225 195,362 200,362
2019 24,263 737 195,063 220,063
2020 23,942 1,058 194,463 219,463
2021-2025 262,326 27,674 956,924 1,246,924
2026-2030 484,024 105,976 910,425 1,500,425
2031-2035 543,388 421,764 843,437 1,808,589
2036-2040 1,238,126 216,874 711,018 2,166,018
2041-2045 2,010,000 - 290,586 2,300,586
Totals $ 4590844 % 774308 % 4,688,004 § 10,053,156

4. Bond Premium

Bond premium arises when the markel rate of interest is higher than the stated inlerest rate on the bond.
Generally Accepled Accounting Principles (GAAP) require that the premium increase the face value of the
bond and then amortize the premium over the life oi the bond. The premiums are amortized over the life of
the bond using the effective interast rate method.

The following bonds were issued at a premium resulling in efective interest as follows:

2010 2012
Series A Series A

Bonds Bonds
Total Interest $ 3,075,100 % 2,659,700
Less Bond Premium (223,578) {156,719}
Net Interest 5 2,851,522 $ 2,502,981
Par Amount of Bonds % 2,499,582 $ 2,170,992
Periods a0 30
Effective Interest Rate 3.80% 3.84%
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M. Joint Ventures (loint Powers Agreemenis)

The District participates in one joint powers agreement (JPA) entity, the San Diege County Schools Risk
Managemant (SDCSRM). The relationship between the District and the JPA is such that the JPA is not a
component unit of the District.

The JPA arranges for and provides for various types of insurances for its member districts as requested. The JPA is
govemed by a board consisting of a representative from each member district. The board controls the operations of
the JPA, including seleclion of management and approval of operating budgels, independent of any influence by
the member districts beyond their representation on the board. Each member district pays a premium
commensurale with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate 1o their
participation in the JPA.

Combined condensed unaudited financial information of the District's share of the JPA for the year ended June 30,
2015is as follows:

Total Assets $ (44,64E)
Total Liabilities 3,921
Total Fund Balance {48,567)
Total Gash Receipts 11,827
Total Cash Disbursements 17,061
Net Change in Fund Balance (5,234}

The District has a repayment plan in place to repay the deficit balance at June 30, 2015.
PBansion Plans

General Information About the Pension Plans

a. Plan Descriptions

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by agencies of
the State of Califonia. Certificated employees are members of the Califomia State Teachers Retirement System
(CalSTRS) and classified employess are members of the Califomia Public Employees’ Refirement System
(CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State siatute and Local Government resolution.
Support by the State for the CalSTRS plan is such that the plan has a special funding situation as defined by GASB
Statement No. 68. CalSTRS and CalPERS issue publicly available reports that include a full description of the
pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on their
respective websites.

b. Benefits Provided

CalSTRS and CalPERS provide service relirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjusiments and
death benefits to plan members. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time
employment. Members wilh five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 62 for normal benefits or at age 55
with staiutorily reduced benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2013 are eligible to retire at age 60 for normal
benefits or at age 55 with statulorily reduced benefits. Al members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits atter
10 years of service. All members are eligible for death benefits afier one year of fotal service.

a5



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2014 (measurement date)are summarized as follows:

CalSTRS CalPERS

Before On or After Before On or After
Hire Date Jan.1,2013 Jan, 1, 2013 Jan, 1, 2013 Jan. 1. 2013
Banefit Formula 2% at 60 2% at 62 2% at 55 2% at 62
Benefit Vesting Schedule 5 Years 5 Years 5 Years 5 Years
Benefit Payments Manthly for Life  Monthly for Life  Monthly for Life  Monthly for Life
Retirement Age 50-62 55-67 50-62 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.1-24% 1.0 - 2.4%" 1.1-2.5% 1.0-2.5%
Required employee contribution rates (Average) 8.000% 8.000% 6.974.% 6.974.%
Required employer contribution rates 8.250% 8.250% 11.442% 11.442%

*Amounts are limited to 120% of Social Security Wage Base.
c. Contributions - CalPERS

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires lhat the employer contribution rates for
all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be efiective on the July 1 following
notice of a change in the rate. The CalPERS Board retains the authority to amend contribution rates. The total plan
conlributions are determined through CalPERS' annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary 1o finance the cosis of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employess. For the measurement pariod ended
June 30, 2014 (measurement date), the average acltive employee conlribution rate is 6.974% of annual pay, and the
employer's contribution rate is 11.442% of annual payroll.

d. Contributions - CalSTRS

For the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 (measurement date), Section 22950 of the California Education
Caode requires members o contribute manthly to the system 8% of the creditable compensation upon which members'
contributions under this part are based. In addilion the employer required rates established by the CalSTRS Board
have been esiablished at B.25% of creditable compensation. Rales are defined In Section 22950.5 through
measurement pariod ending June 30, 2021, Beginning in the fiscal year 2021-22 and for each fisca! year thereafter,
the CalSTRS Board has the authority to increase or decrease percenlages paid specific to reflect the contribution
required to eliminate by June 30, 2046, the remaining unfunded actuarial obligation with respect to service credited
io members before July 1, 2014, as dstermined by the Board based upon a recommendation from its actuary.

e. On Behalf Payments.

Consistent with Section 22955.1 of the California Education Code, the State of California makes contributions to
CalSTRS on behalf of employees working for the District. For the measurement period ended June 30, 2014
(measurement date) the State contributed 5.204002% of salaries creditable to CalSTRS. Under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, these amounts are to be reported as ravenues and expenditures.
Accordingly, these amounts have been recorded in these financial slalements. On behalf payments have been
excluded from the calculation of available reserves, and have not been included in the budgeted amounts reported
in the General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule.
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f. Contributions Recognized

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan were as

follows:
CalSTRS CalPERS
Contributions - Employer $ 45272 § 46,920
Contributions - Employee 45,443 29,025
Contributions - State On Behalf Payments 27,669 -
Tolal Pension Expense $ 118,384 $ 75,945
Pension expense for each plan were as follows:
CalSTRS CalPERS
Change in Net Pension Liability % (260,002} $ (159,701)
Net Difference between projecled and actual earnings
on plan investrments 287,800 152,132
Total Employer and State Contributions 118,384 75,945
Total Pension Expense $ 146,182 $ 68,376

2. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Oulflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2015, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net pension liability
of each plan as follows:

Proportionate

Share of Nel
Pension Liability
CalSTRS 3 1,168,740
CalPERS 442,745
Total Net Pension Liability $ 1,611,485

The District's net pension liability for each Plan Is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2014, and the tolal pension liability for
each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013
rolled forward to June 30, 2014 using standard update procedures. The District's proparion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the
projecied contributions of all paricipating employers, actuarially determined. Although a valid comparison of the
District's proportion at June 30, 2014 {o its proportion at June 30, 2013 is nol avaitable in the first year of
implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, that disclosure will be available in subsequent years.

The District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2013 and 2014 was as

follows:
CalSTRS CalPERS
Proportion - June 30, 2013 0.0020% 0.0039%
Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.0020% 0.0039%

Change - Increase (Decrease) : -
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For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of $214,558. At June 30, 2015, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relaled to pensions from the following

sources:
Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent o measurement date $ 138,591 § -
Differences between actual and expected experience - -
Changes in assumptions - -
Change in employer's proportion and differences between
the employer's contributions and the employer's
proportionate share of contributions - -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on plan investmeants - (439,932)
Totat $ 138,591 § {439,932)

$138,591 reporied as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. The other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relaled to pensions will be recognized as
pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30
2016 $ (109,983)
2017 (109,983)
2018 (109,983)
2019 109,983}
Total $ 439,932}

a. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013 acluarial valuations were determined using the following actuarial

assumptions:
CalSTRS CalPERS
Valuation Date June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013
Measurement Date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age - Normal Cost Method for both CalSTRS & CalPERS
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.6% 7.5%
Inflation 3.0% 2.75%
Payralt Growth 3.75% 3.00%
Projected Salary Increase 0.05%-5.6% (1) 3.20%-10.80% (1)
Investment Rate of Return 76% (2} 75% (2)
Mortality .013%-0.435% (3) 0.00125-0.45805 (3)

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
{2} Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
(3) Depending on age, gender, and type of job
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b. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60% for CalSTRS and 7.50% for GalPERS. To
determine whether the District bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalSTRS
and CalPERS slress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the
actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of asseis. Therefore, the
current discount rates are adequate and the use of the District bond rale calculation is not necessary for either plan.
The stress test resulls are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS and CalSTRS
websiles.

According to Paragraph 30 of GASB Statement No. 68, the long-lerm discount rate should be determined without
reduclion for pension plan administrative expense. The investment refum assumption used in the accounting
vaiuations is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. Using this
lower discount rate has resulled in a slightly higher Total Pension Liability and Net Pansion Liability. CalSTRS and
CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference in calculation and did not find it to be a material
difference.

CalSTRS and CalPERS are scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of their regular Asset Liability
Management (ALM} review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to the discount
rate will require board action and proper stakeholder oulreach. For these reasons, CalSTRS and CalPERS expect fo
continue using a discount rate net ol administrative expenses for GASB 67 and GASB 68 calculations through at least
the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalSTRS and CalPERS will continue {o check the maleriality of the difference in calculation
until such fime as they have changed their methodology.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimale ranges of expecled future real rates of return (expected retums, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalSTRS and CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market relum expectations as well as the expecled pension fund cash flows. Using historical retums of all
the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the shor-tlerm (first 10 years) and long-term
(11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term,
the present value of bensfits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the
single equivalent expected return that amived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calcuiated using both shor-term and long-term relurns. The expected rate of return was then sel equivalent to the
single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expecied real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of
return are net of administrative expenses.

Strategic Real Retumn Real Return
Asset Class Allocation (Years 1-10)(1} (Years 11+)(2)
Global Equity 47.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.55% -1.05%

(1} An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
{2} An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period
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c. Sensitivity lo Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The follawing represents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan, calculated using

the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rale that is 1 percenlage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the

current rate:

CalSTRS CalPERS
1% Decrease 6.60% 6.50%
Net Pension Liability 5 2,050,237 $ 776,676
Current Discount Rate 7.60% 7.50%
Net Pension Liability $ 1,168,740 $ 442,745
1% Increase B.60% 8.50%
Net Pension Liability $ 432,161 $ B3,955
d.  Total Pension Liability, Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position and Net Pension Liability
CalSTRS
Increase (Decreass)
Total Plan MNet
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) {a} - ()
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 4,755,720 § 3,326,978 $ 1,428,742
Changes for the year:
Service cost 106,760 - 106,760
Interest 356,440 - 356,440
Diflerences between expected and
actual experience - -
Contributions - Employer - 45,272 {45,272)
Contributions - Employee - 45,443 {45,443)
Contributions - State On Behalf - 27,669 {27,669)
Net investment income - 608,038 (608,038)
Other income - 41 (41)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions {240,700) (240,700} -
Administrative expenses - {3,083} 3,083
Other expenses - (178) 178
Net Changes 222,500 482 502 {260,002)

Balance at June 30, 2015

$ 4,978,220 § 3,809.480 § 1,168,740
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CalPERS
Increase (Decrease)
Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pengion
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) {b) (a)- (b)
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 2,536,409 & 1,933,963 § 602,446
Changes for the year:
Service cost 61,465 - 61,465
Interest 187,946 - 187,946
Differences batween expected and
aclual experience - -
Contributions - Employer - 46,920 (46,920)
Contributions - Employes - 20,025 (29,025)
Net investment income . 333,167 (333,167)
Benefit paymenits, including refunds
of employee contributions (122,401) (122,401} -
Administrative expenses - : =
Other expenses - - -
Net Changes 127,010 286,711 {159,701)
Balance at June 30, 2015 $ 2,663,419 % 2220674 % 442,745

Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalSTRS
and CalPERS financial reports.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits
Plan Description

The Dehesa School District (District) offers health care benefils, as established by board policy, to all employees
who retire from the District and meet established requirements. Currently, the District pays 100% of the cost of the
premium. Based on the July 1, 2013 actuarial study the number of active employees was 25 with 2 relirees.

Contribution Information

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established and amended by the Dislrict. The
required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2014-15, the
District contributed $19,967 for health care benefits which represented 28.6% of the annual required contribution.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Qbligation

The District's annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual
required conlribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters
of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial accrued liabiliies (UAAL) (or funding excess) over
a period not to exceed thiny years. The following table shows the components of the Districts annual OPEB cost of
the year, the amount aclually contributed to the plan and changes in the District's net obligation to the Plan:

Annual required coniribution 3 67,519
Contribution made {19,967)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 47,552

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year
Net OPEB obligation, end of year

90,004

$ 137,556
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The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation
for 2014 and 2015 was as follows:

Annual
Year Ended Required Parcentage Net OPEB
June 30, Contribution Contributed Qbligation
2014 $67,519 36.4% $90,004
2015 $67,519 29.6% $137.556

Funding Status and Funding Progress

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumpfions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the fulure. Examples Include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as aciual results are  compared with
past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial slatements, presents multivear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefils for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan {the Plan as understood by
the employer and the Plan members) and include the types of benefils provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and Plan members 1o that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-lerm volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assels, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The District utilized the Altemative Measurement Method which differs from a full acluarial valuation and is
permitted for employers with fewer than one hundred plan members, which includes employees in aclive service,
terminated employees who have accumulated benefils but are not receiving them, and retirees and beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits. In the July 1, 2013 actuarial review under the Allemative Measurement Method, the
actuarial cost method used was Projected Unit Credit with service prorate. Under this method, the Actuarial Accrued
Liability is the present value of projected benefits multiplied by the ratio of benefit service as of the valuation date
lo the projecled benefit service at retirement, termination, disability or death. The Normal Cost for a plan year is the
expecled increase in the Accrued Liability during the plan year. Al employees eligible as of the measurement date
in accordance with the provisions of the Plan listed in the data provided by the Employer were included in the
valuation.

The UAAL is being amortized at a level dollar method with the amortization period at June 30, 2015 of 28 years.

42



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

P.

Adi Beginning Net Pasil

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 68 & 71 during the current fiscal year which resulted in accounting
changes for net pension liability. Under previous standards, net pension liability was not recorded on the statement
of net position. Under newly implemented standards the net pension liability is recorded as a liability on the
statement of net position. In addition, resulting from a difference in the measurement date for the net pension
liability, any contributions to pensions subsequent to the measurement date are now recorded as deferred outflows of
resources. The combination of changes due to accounting policies resulted in an adjustment to the beginning net
position as follows:

Net Position, Beginning (As Originally Stated) $ 1,937,626
Adjustments for:
Change in Accounting Policy - Net Pension Liability (2,031,190)
Change in Accounting Palicy - Defarred Outfiows Pension Related 194,329
Net Position, Beginning {As Restated) $ 100,765
Components of Ending Fund Bafance

As of June 30, 2015 components of ending fund balance consisted of:

Major Governmental Funds

Nonmajor Total
General Building Governmental  Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds

Nonspendable Fund Balances

Revolving Cash $ 5,637 § - $ - $ 5,637
Restricted Fund Balances

Educational Programs 159,319 - 1,181 160,500

Child Nutrition Program - - 16,591 16,591

Capital Projects 2,979,687 477,353 3,457,040

Debt Service - - 108,741 108,741
Commited Fund Balances

Deferred Maintenance - - 107,384 107,384
Assigned Fund Balances

Educational Programs - - 126,572 126,572

Capital Projects - . 7,430 7,430

Post Employment Benefits 67,589 - . 67,589
Unassigned Fund Balances

For Economic Uncertainty 739,611 - - 739,611

Unappropriated 37,225 - - 37,225
Total Fund Balance $ 1,009,381 % 2,979,687 5 845252 § 4,834,320
C i | Goni .
Litioati

The District Is involved in various liigation. In the opinion of management and lega! counsel, the disposition of all
litigation pending will not have a material effect on the financial statements.

State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Granls

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the
grantor agencies. Although such audils could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is
believed that any required reimbursement will not ba material.
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5. Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2015 the District had the following commitments with respect to unfinished capital projects:

Expected
Date of
Commitment Compiletion®
Construction in Process:
Dehesa Elementary Two-Story Building Addition $ 5,425,706 January 2016

*Expected date of completion subject to change

T. Subsequent Evenis
New Accounting Pronouncements
GASB Statement No. 72

In February 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Application. The primary objective of this Stalement is to address accounting and financial
reporting issues related fo fair value measurements. This Stalement requires a govemment fo use valuation
techniques that are appropriate under circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 1o measure fair
value. The techniques should be consistent with one or more of the following approaches:

The Market Approach: This approach uses prces and olher relevant infarmation generatad by market
transactions involving identical or comparable assets, liabilities, or a group of assets and liabilities.

The Cost Approach: This approach reflects the amount that would be required to replace the present service
capacity of the asset.

The Income Approach: This approach converts future amounts (such as cash flows or income and expenses) to
a single cumrent (discounted) amount.

In addition to establishing fair value ftechniques the Stalement establishes a hierarchy of inputs to valuation
lechniques and requires additional note disclosures about fair value in the financial statements. The requirements
of this Statement will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by requiring
measurement of certain assels and liabilities at fair valug using a consistent and more detailed definition of fair
value and accepted valuation techniques. This Statement will also enhance fair value application guidance and
related disclosures in order to provide information to financial statement users about the impact of fair value
measuremeants on a government's financial position.

The Statement is effective for years beginning afler June 15, 2015 and as such the District is implementing
effective for the 2015-16 fiscal year.

GASB Statement No. 76

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 78, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles For
State and Local Governments. The objective of this Statement Is to identify, in the context of the current
govemmental financial reporing environment, the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). This Statement supersedes Statement No. 55 and is effective for financial siatement
periods beginning after June 15, 2015 and as such the District is implementing eifective for the 2015-16 fiscal year.
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Required Supplementary Information

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board but not considered a part of the basic financial statemenits.



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Revenues:

LCFF Sources:
State Apportionment or State Aid
Education Protection Account Funds
Local Sources

Federal Revenue

Other State Revenue

Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current;
Certificated Salaries
Classified Salaries
Employee Benefils
Books And Supplies
Services And Other Operating Expenditures
Direct Suppori/Indirect Cosls
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {(Uses):
Transfers In
Transfers Qut
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30

EXHIBIT B-1

Variance with

Finaf Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
$ 1,118,047 1,147,059 $ 1,084277 § (62,782)
167,461 208,192 249,655 41,463
89,611 103,122 108,069 4,947
377,018 364,778 365,190 412
142,269 99,916 150,795 50,879
1,090,829 1,276,662 1,390,534 113,872
2,985,225 3,199,729 3,348,520 148,791
965,027 867,545 913,954 (46,409)
461,465 488,918 489,340 (422)
407,938 407,895 436,640 (28,745)
99,152 155,000 129,763 25,237
1,178,054 1,304,583 1,386,035 (81,452)
- - {2,775) 2,775
31,000 11,334 7,062 4,272
3,142,636 3,235,275 3,360,019 {124,744)
(157,411) (35,546} {11,499) 24,047
7,950 23,434 9,475 {13,959)
- (126,880) 82,204) 44,676
7,950 (103,446) 72,729) 30,717
(149,461) (138,992) (84,228) 54,764
541,763 541,763 541,763 -
% 392302 & 402,771 % 457535 § 54,764
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Cavered Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) {(b-a)ic)
07/01/13 $ - $ 448800 % 448,800 - $ 1,384,400 32.4%
07/0113 $ - $ 448,800 $ 448,800 - 3 1,474,031 30.4%
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Budgetary Compariscn Schedule - General Fund

As described In Note A to these financial statements, for purposes of reporting in conformity with GASB
Statement No. 54, the District's Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Qutlay (Fund 17) and Special
Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits (Fund 20) was included with the General Fund. The Budgetary
Comparison Schedule included in the Required Supplementary Information is based on the legally adopted budget

for the General Fund only.
General Fund - Fund Financial Statements Ending Fund Balance

Less Fund 20 Fund Balance
Less Fund 17 Fund Balance

General Fund - Budgetary Comparison Schedule Ending Fund Balance

General Fund - Fund Financial Statements Net Change in Fund Balance

Change if Fund Balance attributed to Fund 20
Change in Fund Balance attributed to Fund 17

General Fund - Budgetary Comparison Schedule Change in Fund Balance

51

$ 1,009,381

(67,589)
(484,257)

$ 457,635

$ (24,671)

8,032
(67,589)

S (64,226)




Combining Statements and Budget Comparisons
as Supplementary Information

This supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS:

Cash in County Treasury
Cash on Hand and in Banks
Accounis Receivable

Due from Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:

Restricted Fund Balances
Committed Fund Balances
Assigned Fund Batances
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

EXHIBIT C-1

Debt
Service Total
~ Fund Nonmajor

Special Bond Capital Governmental

Revenue Interest Projects Funds (See

Funds & Redemption Funds Exhibit A-3)
5 266,814 § 108,741 487,330 % 862,885
479 - - 479
13,697 - 475 14,172
484 - - 484
281,474 108,741 487 805 878,020
$ 10,756 & - 3022 § 13,778
18,930 - - 18,990
29,746 * 3,022 32,768
17,772 108,741 477,353 603,866
107,384 - - 107,384
126,572 & 7,430 134,002
251,728 108,741 484,783 845,252
5 281474 & 108,741 487805 $ 878,020




EXHIBIT C-2

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 Debt
Service Total
Fund Nonmaijor
Special Bond Capital Governmental
Revenue Interest Projects Funds (See
Funds & Redemption Funds Exhibit A-5)
Revenues:
Federal Revenue $ 43532 % - $ e $ 49,532
Other State Revenue 4,195 1,392 - 5,587
Other Local Revenue 69,179 114,347 343,094 526,620
Total Revenues 122,906 115,739 343,094 581,739
Expenditures:
Pupil Services 136,934 - S 136,934
General Administration 2,775 - - 2,775
Plant Services 48,838 - 46,340 95,178
Debt Service:
interest - 166,817 - 166,817
Total Expenditures 188,547 166,817 46,340 401,704
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (65,641) (51,078) 296,754 180,035
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Transfers In 14,685 - - 14,685
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 14,685 - - 14,685
Net Change in Fund Balance (50,956) (51,078) 296,754 194,720
Fund Balance, July 1 302,684 159,819 188,029 650,532
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 251,728 % 108741 $ 484,783 & 845,252




Cafeleria
Fund

$ 19,325
300

13,462

114

33,201

$ 6,700
9,910
16,610

16,591

16,591

3 33,21

Deferred
Maintenance
Fund
5 107,279

105

107,384

107,384

107,384

5 107,384

EXHIBIT C-3

Total
Nanmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds {See
Exhibit C-1)

$ 266,814

479
13,697
484

281,474

5 10,756

18,990
29,746

17,772
107,384
126,572
261,728

3 281.474



Cafeteria
Fund

$ 49,532
4,185

19,570

73,297

76,758
2,775
1.628

81,161

(7,864)

7,865
7,865

1

16,590
§ 16,591

Deferred
Maintenance
Fund

335
335

47,210
47,210

(46,875)

(46,875)

154,259

$ 107,384

57

EXHIBIT C-4

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds {See
Exhibit C-2)

$ 49,532
4,195

69,179

122,906

136,934
2,775
48,838
188,547

{65,641)

14,685
14,685

(50,956)

302,684
$ 251,728



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
JUNE 30,2015

ASSETS:

Cash in County Treasury
Accounts Receivable
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:

Restricted Fund Balances
Assigned Fund Balances
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

EXHIBIT C-5

Total
Nonmajor
Capital Capital
Capital Qutlay Projects
Facilities Projects Funds (See
Fund Fund Exhibit C-1)
479907 % 7,423 $ 487,330
468 7 475
480,375 7,430 487,805
3022 § ) § 3,022
3,022 - 3,022
477,353 - 477,353
- 7,430 7,430
477,353 7,430 484,783
$ 480375 & 7,430 g 487 805




DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Revenues:
Other Local Revenue
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Plant Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30

Total
Nonmajor
Capital Capital
Capital Qutlay Projects
Facilities Projects Funds (See
Fund Fund Exhibit C-2)
343,072 22 $ 343,094
343,072 22 343,094
46,340 - 46,340
46,340 - 46,340
296,732 22 296,754
296,732 22 296,754
180,621 7,408 188,029
477,353 7,430 5 484,783

EXHIBIT C-6



Other Supplementary Information

This section includes financial information and disclosures not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board and not considered a part of the basic financial statements. It may, however, include information which is
required by other entities.



Supplementary Information Section



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY
ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
JUNE 30, 2015

The Dehesa School District was established in 1876 and is comprised of approximately 19 square miles,
located in San Diego County. There were no changes in the boundaries of the District during the year. The
District is currently operating one K-8 elementary school and sponsors six charter schools.

Governing Board

Name Office Term and Term Expiration
Cynthia White President Four Year Term
Expires November 2018
Jeff Royal Vice President Four Year Term
Expires November 2016
Christina Becker Clerk Four Year Term
Expires November 2018
Karl Becker Member Four Year Term
Expires November 2018
Derek Voth Member Four Year Term
Expires November 2016

Administration

Nancy Hauer
Supetintendent

Tamara Ripke
Principal

Lori Wigg
Business Manager



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D-1
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Second Period Report Annual Report
Original Revised Original Revised
TK/K-3:

Regular ADA 82.02 N/A 83.07 N/A
TK/K-3 Totals 82.02 N/A 83.07 N/A
Grades 4-6:

Regular ADA 61.38 N/A 61.53 N/A
Grades 4-6 Totals 61.38 N/A 61.53 N/A
Grades 7 and 8:

Regular ADA 27.82 N/A 27.67 N/A
Grades 7 and 8 Totals 27.82 N/A 27.67 N/A
ADA Totals 171.22 N/A 172.27 N/A

N/A - There were no audit findings which resulied in necessary revisions to attendance.

Average daily atlendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the district or charter
school. The pumose of attendance accounting fram a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which
apportionments of state funds are made to school districts and charler schools. This schedule provides Information
regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

&1



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Grade Level

Kindergarten
Grade 1
Grade 2
Grade 3
Grade 4
Grade 5
Grade 6
Grade 7

Grade 8

TABLE D-2
Ed. Code Ed. Code Number Number
46207 46207 2014-15 of Days of Days
Minutes Adjusted & Actual Traditional Muttitrack
Requirement Reduced Minutes Calendar Calendar Status
36,000 35,000 58,937 181 - Complied
50,400 49,000 55,317 181 - Complied
50,400 49,000 55317 181 - Complied
50,400 49,000 55,317 181 - Complied
54,000 52,500 55,317 181 - Complied
54,000 52,500 55,317 181 - Complied
54,000 52,500 58,937 181 - Complied
54,000 52,500 58,152 181 - Complied
54,000 52,500 58,152 181 S Complied

School districts and charter schools must maintain their instructional minutes as defined in Education Code Section 46207.

This schedule is required of all districts, including basic aid districts.

The District has received incentive funding for Increasing instructional time as provided by the Incentives for Longer
Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the amount of instruction time offered by the District and whether
the District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46206. The District neither met nor

exceeded its target funding.



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D-3
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Budget
2016

General Fund (See Note 1) 2015 2014 2013
Revenues and other financial sources $ 3,367,519 % 3357995 § 3,140,276 §% 3,201,417
Expenditures, other uses and
transfers out 3,377,648 3,442,223 3,183,760 3,055,355
Change in fund balance {deficit) {10,129) (84,228) (43,484) 146,062
Ending fund balance $ 447406 $ 457535 % 541,763 % 585,247
Available reserves (Note 2} $ 312859 $ 292579 § 292210 §% 291,409
Available reserves as a parcentage

of total ouige 9.3% 8.5% 9.3% 9.7%
Total long-term debt (Note 5) $ 6,718591 & 6732340 § 5002320 $ 2,812.012
Average daily attendance at P-2 172 171 181 207

This schedule discloses the district's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget information.
These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluale the district's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

The general fund balance has increased by $18,350 over the past three years. The fiscal year 2015-16 budget projects
a decrease of $10,129. For a district this size, the stale recommends available reserves of al least 5% of general
fund expenditures, other uses and transfers out.

Long-term debt has increased by $6,713,347 over the past three years.
Average dalily attendance (ADA) has decreased by 44 over the past three years,

Notes:

1 Budget 2016 Is included for analytical purposes only and has not been subjected to audit.

2 Available reserves consist of all assigned fund balances, all unassigned fund balances, and all funds reserved for
economic uncertainties contained within the General Fund.

3 On behalt payments of $51,163, $51,179, and $47,561, have been excluded from the calculation of available
reserves for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013.

4 As described in Note A to these financial stalements, for purposes of reporting in conformity with GASB
Statement No. 54, the Districts Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay (Fund 17) and Special
Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits (Fund 20) are included with the General Fund. The above Schedule
of Financial Trends and Analysis contains only the financial information of the General Fund.

5 As a result of implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, long term kabilities for the year ended June 30, 2015
include net pension liabilities which were not previously accounted for. As such, tofal long term debt for the year
ended June 30, 2015 is not comparable to previous years represented in this table.
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET
REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

June 30, 2015, annual financial and budget
report fund balances

Adjustments and reclassifications:
Increasing (decreasing) the fund balance:
GASB 54 required inclusion with general fund
Net adjustments and reclassifications

June 30, 2015, audited financial statement fund balances

June 30, 2015, annual financial and budget
report total liabilities

Adjustments and reclassifications:
Increase (decrease) in total liabilities:
Accreted interest understatement
Net pension liability understatement
Net OPEB obligation understatement

Bond premium overstatement

Net adjustments and reclassifications

June 30, 2015, audited financial statement tolal iabilities

TABLE D-4
Special Special
General Reserve Reserve
Fund Fund{17) Fund(20)
$ 457535 $ 484,257 % 67,589
551,846 {484,257) (67,589)
551,846 {484,257) (67,589}
$ 1,009,381 $ - $ -
Schedule of
Long-Term
Debt
$ 5,063,440
22,333
1,611,485
67,518
{12,436)
1,688,900

§ 6,752,340

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balances of all funds and the total liabilities balance
of the general long-term debt account group as reported on the SACS report to the audited financial statements. Funds

that required no adjustment are not presented.



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT TABLE D-5
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The iollowing charter schools are chartered by Dehesa School District.

Included In
Charer Schools Audit?
Dehesa Charter Schaol No
Diego Hills Charter School No
The Heights Charier School No
Community Montessori Charter School No
Mosaica Online Academy of Southern California No
Methods Charter School No

65
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WILKINSON HADLEY
P. Robert Wilkinson, CPA KING & CO . L L P Aubrey W. King, CPA

Brian K. Hadley, CPA CPAs AND ADVISORS Kevin A. Sproule, CPA

WMWMWWMSE [ i In A I With G \uditing Standard

Board of Trustees
Dehesa School District
El Cajon, California

Members of the Board of Trustees:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audiis contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Compiroller General of the United Stales, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Dehesa School District, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial slatemenis, which colleclively
comprise Dehesa School District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 26, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Dehesa School District's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Dehesa School District's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Dehesa School District's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a materia! misstalement of the entily's financial
statements will not be prevenied, or detected and corrected an a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
ye! important enough ta merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in inlernal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Dehesa School District's financial statemenis
are free from malerial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to
be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item(s) 2015-001 and 2015-002.

El Cajon Office Emeryville Office
218 W. Douglas Avenue El Cajon, CA 92020 66 1900 Powell Street, Suite 600 Emeryville, CA 94608
Tel. (619) 447-6700 Fax (619) 447-6707 Tel. (619) 510-588-8729 Fax (619) 447-6707



Dehesa School District's Response to Findings

Dehesa School District's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned cosls. Dehesa School District's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
onit.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Slandards in consideting the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

UWslbiinaon 74/@{1?, Kiing 5 Co., LLP

El Cajon, California
January 26, 2016
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WILKINSON HADLEY
P. Robert Wilkinson, CPA KING & Co. LLP Aubrey W. King, CPA

Brian K. Hadley, CPA CPAs AND ADVISORS Kevin A. Sproule, CPA

Independent Auditor's Report on State Compliance

Board of Trustees
Dehesa School District
El Gajon, California

Members of the Board of Trusiees:
Report on State Compliance

We have audited the District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
2014-15 Guide for Annual Audils of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporling
published by the California Education Audit Appeals Panel that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the Dislrict's state programs identified below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Management's Responsibility for State Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, reguiations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on compliance for each applicable program as identified in the
State's audit guide, 2014-15 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and
State Compliance Reporting published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller Genera! of the United Stales; and the State’s audit guide, 20714-15 Guide for Annual
Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting published by the
Education Audit Appeals Panel. Those standards and audit guide require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above thal could have a direct and material effect on the state programs noted below
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Districl's complance with
those requirements and periorming such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the District's compliance with those requirements.

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selecled and tested transacltions and records 1o
determine the District's compliance with the stale laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures in

Audit Guide

Compliance Requirements Performed?
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCIES
OTHER THAN CHARTER SCHOOLS:
Attendance Accounting:

Attendance Reporting Yes

Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes

Kindergarten Continuance Yes

Independent Study NfA

Continuation Education N/A

El Cajon Office Emeryville Office
218 W. Douglas Avenue El Cajon, CA 92020 1900 Powell Street, Suite 600 Emeryville, CA 94608

Tel. (619) 447-6700 Fax (619) 447-6707 L Tel. (619) 510-588-8729 Fax (619) 447-6707



Instructional Time

Instructional Materials

Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers
Classroom Teacher Salaries

Early Retirement Incentive

GANN Limit Calculation

School Accountability Report Card

Juvenile Court Schools

Middle or Early College High Schools

K-3 Grade Span Adjustment

Transportation Maintenance of Effort

Regional Occupational Centers or Programs Maintenance of Effort
Adult Education Maintenance of Effort

SCHOOL DISTRICTS, COUNTY OFFICES OF
EDUCATION, AND CHARTER SCHOOLS:
California Clean Energy Jobs Act
After School Education and Safety Program:

After School

Befare School

General Requirements
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds
Common Core Implementation Funds
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts
Local Control and Accountability Pian

CHARTER SCHOOLS:

Attendance

Mode of Instruction

Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based

Charter School Facility Grant Program

The term "N/A" is used above to mean either the District did not offer the program during the current fiscal
year or the program applies to a different type of local education agency.

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, Dehesa School District complied, in all materia! respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that are applicable to the statutory requirements listed in the schedule above for the

year ended June 30, 2015.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with the statutory
requirements for programs noted above, which are required to be reported in accordance with the State's
audit guide, 2014-15 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel and which is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item(s)2015-001 and 2015-002. We did not

modify our opinion with respect to this matter.
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Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
N/A
Yes
Yes
N/A
N/A
N/A
Yes
N/A
N/A

Yes

N/A
N/A
N/A
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A



Dehesa School District's Response to Findings

Dehesa School District's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Dehesa School District's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statemenis and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance outside of the items tested as noted above. This report is an integral part of an audit
periormed in accordance with the 2014-15 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel in
considering the entity's compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

El Cajon, California
January 26, 2016
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DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1.

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes
One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? __ Yes
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
One or mere material weaknesses identified? Yes
One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reporied in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-1337? Yes
Identification of major programs:
CEDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Not Applicable Not Applicable
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $300.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
State Awards
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Standards and Procedures
for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies? X  Yes
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for state programs: Unmodified

A

X No

X  None Reported

X No

X  Not Applicable

X Not Applicable

X Not Applicable

X Not Applicable

No



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

B. Financial Statement Findings
NONE
C. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2015-001(10000)
Attendance

Determine that class attendance rosters are being signed, dated and retained in a timely manner as
proper verification of pupil attendance based on the guidelines and provisions under Education Code
Sections 46000 and 46303.

Conditi
In review of the class rosters at Dehesa Elementary School for the seventh month of aftendance,
we noted that the class rosters were not being printed and verified on a timely basis. Printing,
signing, and date verification of class rosters were in excess of two weeks and up to two months
after each weekly attendance period.

Context
California Education Code Sections 46000 and 46303 require that weekly attendance be signed,

dated, and verified by the teachers within one week after the end of each attendance period.

Questioned Costs

None. The District has established procedures that the teachers enter attendance on a daily basis
and although the verification of class rosters was not completed within state guidelines, the
altendance was entered timely by individuals with first hand knowledge. Based upon our review,
we determined there are no questioned costs or loss of attendance to be identified or justified as all
class rosters had a valid teacher signature and were subsequently approved prior to the end of the
fiscal year.

Cause
School site personnel did not understand the purpose and requirement that teachers verify
attendance within one week after the end of the attendance period.

Effect
The school site was not consistent with the state requirement that attendance must be approved and
verified by teachers within one week after the end of each attendance period.

Becommendation

Implement procedures to ensure class rosters are printed timely and are being signed, dated, and
verified by the teachers within one week after the end of each attendance period. Retain all original
rosters printed and verified by the teachers even if changes or corrections have been made as
proper support that attendance is being validated on a timely basis.

The District has implemented procedures to ensure that class rosters are printed and signed on a
weekly basis. All teachers have been instructed to verify, sign, and dale rosters within one week of
each attendance period.
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Finding 2015-002(72000)
School Accountability Repert Card

Criteria. or Spacific Requ I
Determine that information provided in the School Accountability Report Card (SARC) for the
facilities status agrees with the most recent facilities walkthrough as disclosed in the Facilities
Inspection Tool (FIT) as required by Education Code 33126 and 33126.1.

Gonditi
In our review of the District's SARC for Dehesa School which was published in January 2015,
we noted that the facilities information was from the facilities walkthrough conducted in
September 2013 and not from the most recent walkthrough which was completed in September
2014; consequently, the SARC did not disclose the most current information in regards to the
school facilities status.

Contaxt
California Education Code Sections 33126 and 33126.1 require that facilities information disclosed

in the SARC agree to the facilities information in the most recent completed FIT.

Questioned Costs

None.

Gause

District personnel did not realize that the current facilities walkthrough information as disclosed in the
most recent FIT which is completed before the SARC publication date should be utilized as the
facilities information of the school site.

Effect
The District was not in compliance with the requirement to report facilities information in the SARC

that agrees to the most current faciltiies walkthrough completed before the SARC publication date.

Becommendation

Implement a review process 1o ensure the facilities data and status disclosed in the SARC for
Dehesa School is from the most recent FIT facilities walkthrough completed prior to the SARC
publication date. Monitor the FIT forms and walkthrough information in order that the most current

facilities data be recorded in the SARC.

The District has implemented a review process to ensure that the School Accountability Report Card
(SARC) reflects the most recent FIT facilities walkthrough completed prior to the SARC publication
date.
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Finding/Recommendation

Management's Explanation

Current Status If Not Implemented

Finding 2014-001
Bank Reconciliations

Bank statement reconciliations were not being
completed and documented on a monthly basis.
The reconciliations were not being completed
timely and available for audit.

Implement procedures that require all bank
statement reconciliations to be completed on a
monthly basis and be available for audit purposes.

Finding 2014-002
Payroll Time Sheets

Four of fifteen timesheets reviewed were not
properly signed and dated by the employee and
supervisor as required by District policy.

Establish procedures to review all employee
timesheets to ensure they are properly completed,
signed, and dated by the employee and their
immediate supervisor.

Finding 2014-003
Instructional Materials

The District held a pubiic hearing to determine the
sufficiency of instructional materials and texts;
however, the District did not comply with the
requirement to post the notification within ten days
of the board meeting date of the public hearing.

Establish internal contrals 1o ensure that the
notification of the public hearing for sufficiency of
instructional materials and texts be posted within
ten days of the actual board meeting date.
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Finding/Recommendation

Current Status

Management's Explanation
If Not Implemented

Finding 2014-004
School Accountability Report Card

In review of the school accountability report card
for Dehesa Elementary School, we noted the
information provided for interior services in the
school facilities section did not agree to the data
provided by the Facilities Inspection Tool.

Implement a review process to ensure that the
information on school facilities as disclosed in the
school accountability report card agrees to the
data and facilities walkthrough information as
stated in the Facilities Inspection Tool.
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Being
Implemented

See Current
Year Finding



